BOLMTHERK QDETRICT OF MERERFM

FILED
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT JUL 18 2008
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI —
SOUTHERN DMVISION ay
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
) .
Plaintiff, ) Civil Action No.| (V3 Il H90-UMR
}
V. ) COMPLAINT
|
LEMUFEL "LEMMY" W. KLEINPETER and )
DENNIS RANDALL O'BRIEN, )
)
Defendants. )

The United States of America alleges as follows:

NATURE OF ACTION

1. This action is brought by the United States on behall of Kevin C. Ely and Clifford David

Pugh, to enforce provisions of the Fair Housing Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601, ef seq
{the "Fair Housing Act” or "the Act").

JURISDICTION & VENLIE

2, The Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 ULS.C. §§ 1331 and 1345, and 42

1U.5.C. § 3612(0).

Lard

Venue is proper under 28 1.S.C. § 1391(b), because the events giving rise to the United
States' claims occurred in the Southern District of Mississippi, the subject property is located
in the Southern District of Mississippi, and at all relevant times, the Defendants resided in
and/or did business in the Southern District of Mississippi.

PARTIES

4. Complainant Kevin Ely is a 30-year old male.
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Complainant Clifford David Pugh is a male. At the time the events underlying this
Complaint arose, Mr. Pugh was Mr. Ely’s roommate.
Defendant Lemuel “Lemmy” W. Kleinpeter, 2 male, is a resident of the State of Anzona
At the time the events underlying this Complaint arose, Mr. Kleinpeter was a resident of the
State of Mississippi and owned and managed a building comprised of four (4) two-bedroom
rental apartments located at 102 Park Row Avenue, Long Beach, Harrison County,
Mississippi 39560 (“the subject property™).
Defendant Dennis Randall O Brien, a male, is a resident of the State of Mississippi. At the
times the events undetlying this Complaint arose, Mr. O"Brien was the agent and/or
employee of Mr. Kleinpeter inasmuch as he handled maintenance and other repairs at the
subject property.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
On or about January 3, 2005, Mr. Ely and Mr. Pugh bepan a one-year lease with Mr.
Kleinpeter of a two-bedroom apartment at the subject property. The lease, signed by Mr. Ely
and Mr. Pugh, was scheduled to end on December 31, 2005.
During the lease period Mr. Kleinpeter lived in Unit 102B, next door to Mr. Ely's and Mr.

Pugh’s apariment.

During the term of the lease, Mr. Kleinpeter and Mr. O'Brien subjected Mr. Elv to severe,
pervasive, continuous and unwelcome verbal and physical sexual advances, including, but
not limited to, Mr. Kleinpeter requesting that M. Ely allow him to take nude photos of him
in exchange for money and Mr. O'Brien on a separate occasion offering to pay Mr. Ely if he

would let him perform oral sex on him. Both Mr. Kleinpeter and Mr. O Brien often made
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sexual advances toward Mr. Ely, touching and/or attempting to touch his gemitals and/or
buttocks. Mr. Kleinpeter also sexually harassed Mr. Ely when he came to pay his rent. In
July 2005, Mr. Kleinpeter offered Mr. Ely free rent if Mr. Ely would be his “boyfriend.”
Between March and August 2005, Mr. Ely repeatedly called the police department to report
that he was being sexually harassed by Mr, Kleinpeter and Mr. O'Brien. One such complaint
was made after Mr. O°Brien made sexual advances toward a minor, male friend of Mr, Elv’s.
In July 2045, a complaint was made to the police, and Mr. O"Brien was charged with
contributing to the delinquency of a minor for allegedly selling alcohol to that minor, A
restraining order was also placed against Mr. 0" Brien, prohibiting him from going near the
minor, Om information and belief, the restraining order also prohibited Mr. O"Brien from
poing near Mr. Ely’s apartment. Mr. Ely also reported the incident involving his minor
friend to Mr. Kleinpeter, who teld Mr. Ely that he should not get the police involved because
“[w]hat happens in the apariments, stays in the apartments,”

In August 2005, Mr. Kleinpeter told Mr. Ely that he would evict him and Mr. Pugh if the
restraining order against Mr. 0" Brien was not dropped.

In August or September 2005, Mr. Ely entered his apartment to find Mr, Kleinpeter in his
(Mr. Ely’s) bedroorm on his knees going through Mr. Ely"s personal belonging and drawers.
Mr. Kleinpeter had a pair of Mr. Ely’s underwear and pants in his hands and was putting
them up to his face, Mr. Kleinpeter threatened that he would evict Mr. Ely and Mr. Pugh if
he reported him 1o the authorities.

On or about August 25, 2005, Mr, Kleinpeter issued an eviction notice to Mr. Ely and Mr.,

Pugh with thirty (30) days to vacate the premises. Mr. Kleinpeter failed to provide a written
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explanation for the eviction in the section of the natice entitled “Cause of Breach.”

Cm August 29, 2005, Hurricane Katrina struck the Mississippt Gulf Coast. Because of the
hurricane, there was an interruption in mail service to Long Beach, and Mr. Ely did not
receive his Social Secunty disability check in time to pay September™s rent by the third of
the month. Mr. Pugh also was temporarily unemploved due to the hurricane.

On September &, 2005, the Harrison County Incident Command Plans Section (HCICPS)
issued a memorandum 1o all owners and rental agents notifying them that unless a unit was
determined to be unsafe for occupancy, it was ordered “unlawful to dispossess a tenant in
rightful possession of his'her rental home . . " and any such action without cause or due
process of law during the emergency period would be serutinized for legal sanctions.

M. Ely gave Mr. Kleinpeter a copy of the HCICPS memoerandum. Mr. Kleinpeter continued
eviction proceedings against Mr. Ely and Mr. Pugh after receiving the memorandum.

On September 16, 20035, Mr. Kleinpeter signed and issued another eviction notice ordering
Mr. Elv and Mr. Pugh to vacate within three (3) days, or pay rent due in arrears in the amount
of $500.

On or about September 16, 2005, Mr. Ely went to Mr. Kleinpeter's apartiment and offered
to pay the rent, so long as he and Mr. Pugh could remain in the unit. Mr. Kleinpeter told Mr,
Ely, however, that he would not stop the eviction proceedings.

On September 26, 2005, the first day that courts were open after Hurricane Katrina, Mr. Ely
and Mr. Pugh were ordered to appear in Harrison County Justice Court on October 10, 2005

to respond to Mr. Kleinpeter’s eviction notice. On Cctober 10, 2005, at the eviction hearing.

Mr. Ely and Mr. Pugh testified that they wanted to remain in their apartment at the subject




property and wanted to pay the renl. The court dismissed the eviction case due to Mr.
Kleinpeter's failure to include a reason for the alleged breach on the original eviction notice.

21, Onthe same day, Mr. Kleinpeter issued a third eviction notice to Mr. Ely and Mr. Pugh, In
this notice, Mr. Kleinpeter alleged the cause of breach was Mr. Ely's and Mr. Pugh's alleged
failure to keep their apartment in a clean, orderly, safe or sanitary condition, keeping an
unregistered and improperly licensed vehicle in the lot and failing to pay rent.

22, Ominformation and belicf, any disarray Mr. Kleinpeter allegedly found in Mr. Ely's and Mr.
Pugh's apartment was due to the effects of the hurricane. Moreover, on information and

belief, Mr. Kleinpeter never had sought to evict a tenant for uncleanliness prior to this,

despite the fact that there has previously been at least one such tenant who did not keep a
clean or tidy apartment. In addition, there was nothing in Mr. Ely’s and Mr. Pugh’s lease that
allowed for eviction for failure to maintain a clean unit.,

23 On or about October 11, 20035, as a result of the continued harassment and attempts to evict
them, and after Mr. Kleinpeter had refused to accept rent so that they could stay in the
apartment, Mr. Pugh and Mr. Ely moved out of the apartment.

24, Mr. Ely moved into a Fedemal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) cruise ship and
subsequently mnto two separate trailer parks. Mr. Pugh moved into his parents” house.

On or about March 8, 2006, Mr. Ely field a verified complaint against the defendants with
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the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD™). On or about
September 10, 2007, the complaint was amended to add Mr. Pugh as an aggrieved person.

The complaint alleged that Mr. Kleinpeter and Mr. O'Brien violated the Fair Housing Act

by, among other things, making discriminatory statements with respect to the rental of a
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dwelling because of sex in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(c) and by coercing, intimidating,
threatening and interfering with the complainants’ enjoyment of the dwelling, in violation
of 42 U.5.C. § 3617.
Pursuant to the requirements of 42 U.S.C. §§ 3610(a) and (b), the Secretary conducted an
investigation of the complaint, attempted conciliation without success, and prepared a final
investigative report. Based on the information gathered in that investipation, the Secretary,
pursuant o 42 U1.5.C. § 3610(g)(1), determined that reasonable cause existed to believe that
a discriminatory housing practice had cccurred. Therefore, on June 2, 2008, the Secrotary
issued a Charge of Discrimination pursuant to 42 10.5.C, § 3610(g)(2WA), charging
Defendants with engaging in discriminatory housing practices in violation of the Fair
Housing Act
On or about June 18, 2008, Mr. Kleinpeter elected to have the charge decided in a civil
action pursuant to 42 ULS.C. § 3612(a)
O July 7, 2008, HUD s Office of the Administrative Law Judges 1ssued a Notice of Election
and Judicial Determination finding that Mr. Kleinpeter had made a timely election to have
the claims asserted in the charge decided in a civil action.
On or about July 9, 2008, HUD authorized the Attorney General to commence a civil action
on behalf of the complainants pursuant to 42 U.5.C. § 3612(o0).

FAIR HOUSING ACT VIOLATIONS
The Defendants, Mr. Kleinpeter and Mr. O'Brien, through the actions described in

Paragraphs B - 29 above, have:

i Made statements with respect to the rental of a dwelling indicating a preference,
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limitation or discrimination based on sex, or an intention to make such a preference,
limitation or discrimination based on sex, in violation of 42 U.5.C. § 3604(c)

Coerced, intimidated, threatened or interfered with a person in the exercise or
enjoyment of, or on account of his having exercised or enjoyed, or on account of his
having aided or encouraged any other persen in the exercise or enjoyment of rights

granted or protected by the Fair Housing Act, in violation of 42 US.C. § 3617.

Mr. Ely and Mr, Pugh are aggrieved persons as defined in 42 U.5.C. § 3602(1), and they

suffered injury as a result of Defendants’ conduct described herein,

I'he discriminatory actions of the Defendants were intentional, willful, and taken in disregard

of Mr. Ely's and Mr. Pugh’s federally protected rights.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the United States prays for reliefl as follows:

L.

b

fd

A declaration that the conduct of the Defendants, as alleped herein, violates the Fair
Housing Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601-3619;

An injunction against the Defendants, their agents, employees, and successors, and
all other persons in active concert or participation with any of them, from
diseriminating on the basis of sex in violation ol the Fair Housing Act, as amended,
42 US.C. §6 3601-3619: and

An award of monetary damages to Mr. Ely and Mr. Pugh, pursuant to 42 U.8.C. §§

3612(0)(3) and 3613(c)(1).




T'he United States further prays for such additional relief as the interests of justice may

Fequre.

Uiated July 18, 2008.

Respectfully Submitted,

DUMNN LAMPTON
United States Attorney
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e"-h'quf A I‘! GIVENS

Assistant United States .ﬂtmme:,
188 East Capitol Street, Suite 500
Jackson, M5 39201
(601)971-2822

DC Bar No. 479587
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